
 
 

 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are invited to attend a Meeting of the  
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
At: 
 

Committee Room 1, Civic Centre, Swansea 
 

On: 
 

Thursday, 27 November 2014 

Time: 
 

3.00 pm 

 
AGENDA 

 
  Page No. 

 
1 Apologies for Absence.  
 
2 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests. 1 - 2 
 
3 Minutes. 3 - 6 

 To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 
30 October 2014. 

 

 
4 Report of the Wales Audit Office: -  

4a Report of Deficiencies of Internal Controls - City and County of 
Swansea.   

7 - 34 

 
5 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2014/15 - Monitoring Report for the 

Period 1st July 2014 to 30th September 2014. 
35 - 39 

 
6 Fundamental Audits 2013/14 - Recommendations Tracker. 40 - 47 
 
7 Audit Committee Work Plan. 48 - 49 
 
8 Date of Next Meeting - 3 p.m. on Thursday, 15 January 2015.  
 

 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal, Democratic Services & Procurement 
Wednesday, 19 November 2014 

Contact: Democratic Services: - 636016 
 
 
 



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE (12) 
 

Lay Member: 
 

Mr Alan M Thomas (Chair) 
 

 
Councillors: 
 

Labour Councillors: 8                   

Bob A Clay D Phillips 

A M Cook Robert V Smith 

Phil Downing Des W W Thomas 

Geraint Owens Lesley V Walton 
 

Liberal Democrat Councillors: 2 

Jeff W Jones (Vice Chair) Paul M Meara 
 

Independent Councillor: 1 

Lynda James  
 

Conservative Councillor: 1 

Paxton R Hood-Williams  
 

 
 
Officers: 

Jack Straw Chief Executive 

Dean Taylor Director of Corporate Services 

Mike Hawes Head of Financial Services 

Paul Beynon Chief Auditor 

Debbie Smith Directorate Lawyer 

Dave Mckenna Overview & Scrutiny Manager 

Sharon Heys Principal Lawyer 

Richard Rowlands Business Performance Manager 

Patrick Fletcher Communications 

PricewaterhouseCoopers External Auditors 

Councillor A M Day Chair of Scrutiny Programme Committee –  

Archives  

Democratic Services  

Spares  
 

Total Copies Needed: 
 

32 

 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\6\3\AI00009369\$2ufkssor.doc 

Disclosures of Interest 

 
To receive Disclosures of Interest from Councillors and Officers 

 

Councillors 

 
Councillors Interests are made in accordance with the provisions of the 
Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea.  You must 
disclose orally to the meeting the existence and nature of that interest. 
 
NOTE: You are requested to identify the Agenda Item / Minute No. / Planning 
Application No. and Subject Matter to which that interest relates and to enter 
all declared interests on the sheet provided for that purpose at the meeting. 
 
1. If you have a Personal Interest as set out in Paragraph 10 of the 

Code, you MAY STAY, SPEAK AND VOTE unless it is also a 
Prejudicial Interest.  

 
2. If you have a Personal Interest which is also a Prejudicial Interest as 

set out in Paragraph 12 of the Code, then subject to point 3 below, you 
MUST WITHDRAW from the meeting (unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the Authority’s Standards Committee) 

 
3. Where you have a Prejudicial Interest you may attend the meeting but 

only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or 
giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are 
also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether 
under a statutory right or otherwise.  In such a case, you must 
withdraw from the meeting immediately after the period for 
making representations, answering questions, or giving evidence 
relating to the business has ended, and in any event before further 
consideration of the business begins, whether or not the public are 
allowed to remain in attendance for such consideration (Paragraph 14 
of the Code). 

 
4. Where you have agreement from the Monitoring Officer that the 

information relating to your Personal Interest is sensitive information, 
as set out in Paragraph 16 of the Code of Conduct, your obligation to 
disclose such information is replaced with an obligation to disclose the 
existence of a personal interest and to confirm that the Monitoring 
Officer has agreed that the nature of such personal interest is sensitive 
information. 

 
5. If you are relying on a grant of a dispensation by the Standards 

Committee, you must, before the matter is under consideration: 
 

i) Disclose orally both the interest concerned and the existence of 
the dispensation; and 

ii) Before or immediately after the close of the meeting give written 
notification to the Authority containing: 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\6\3\AI00009369\$2ufkssor.doc 

a) Details of the prejudicial interest; 
b) Details of the business to which the prejudicial interest 

relates; 
c) Details of, and the date on which, the dispensation was 

granted; and  
d) Your signature 

 

Officers 

 
Financial Interests 
 
1. If an Officer has a financial interest in any matter which arises for 

decision at any meeting to which the Officer is reporting or at which the 
Officer is in attendance involving any member of the Council and /or 
any third party the Officer shall declare an interest in that matter and 
take no part in the consideration or determination of the matter and 
shall withdraw from the meeting while that matter is considered.  Any 
such declaration made in a meeting of a constitutional body shall be 
recorded in the minutes of that meeting.  No Officer shall make a report 
to a meeting for a decision to be made on any matter in which s/he has 
a financial interest. 

 
2. A “financial interest” is defined as any interest affecting the financial 

position of the Officer, either to his/her benefit or to his/her detriment.  It 
also includes an interest on the same basis for any member of the 
Officers family or a close friend and any company firm or business from 
which an Officer or a member of his/her family receives any 
remuneration.  There is no financial interest for an Officer where a 
decision on a report affects all of the Officers of the Council or all of the 
officers in a Department or Service. 

 

Page 2



CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
HELD AT THE CIVIC CENTRE, SWANSEA  

ON THURSDAY 30 OCTOBER 2014 AT 3.00 P.M.  
 

 
 PRESENT:  Mr A M Thomas (Independent Chair) presided 
 
 Councillor(s): Councillor(s): Councillor(s): 
    
 R A Clay L James  D W W Thomas 
 P Downing  J W Jones  L V Walton  
 P R Hood-Williams    
    
 ALSO PRESENT: 
  
 D Hanley-Crofts - Pricewaterhouse Coopers 
    
 Officers:   
    
 M Hawes - Head of Finance and Delivery 
 P Beynon  - Chief Auditor  
 J Hooper - Directorate Lawyer 
 J Parkhouse - Democratic Services Officer  
 
 
39. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors A M Cook and  
 D Phillips. 
 
40. DISCLOSURES OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 
 
 In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and 

County of Swansea, no interests were declared. 
 
41. MINUTES 
 
 RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Meeting of the Audit Committee 

held on 2 October 2014 be agreed as a correct record.  The Committee 
were updated on the following: 

 
 Internal Audit Annual Report 2013/14 
 
 The Chief Auditor stated that he will be discussing performance 

indicators at the Chief Auditor’s Meeting for Wales on 7 November 
2014. 

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Minutes of the Audit Committee (30.11.2014) Cont’d 

 
 Annual Report on School Audits 2013/14 
 
 The Chief Auditor reported that the amount spent by schools on the 

procurement of goods and services was £20m per year.  It was queried 
whether schools use the City and County of Swansea Contract 
Procedure Rules and requested the percentages of schools that do not.  
It was confirmed that schools must comply with the Authority’s Council 
Procedure Rules but do not have to use any Corporate Contracts 
negotiated by the Authority.  However, where Corporate Contracts are 
not used then schools are required to undertake pre-engagement 
checks on suppliers, e.g. insurance cover, DBS compliance, etc. 

 
 It was further queried whether schools were using the Welsh 

Purchasing Consortium for services and the role of the Education 
Procurement Officer in the process.   

 
42. BRIEFING - COUNCIL TAX SINGLE PERSON DISCOUNT  
 
 The Head of Finance and Delivery provided a detailed and informative 

presentation regarding Council Tax Single Person Discount.  Details 
provided included:- 

 

• Background details. 

• How the service works. 

• Tailored SPD (Single Person Discount) Review Service. 

• Review. 

• Targeted accounts. 

• Potential revenue. 

• Work in progress. 

• Summary and conclusions. 
 

 It was added that the Authority had 38,812 properties claiming Single 
Person Discount which is 35% of all properties.  The review of those 
properties claiming Single Person Discount had highlighted 6,905 
which required further work.  1,367 had potentially agreed to cancel 
their Single Person Discount due to their personal circumstances and 
this had raised approximately £224,000 for the Authority. 

 

 The Committee asked a number of questions of the Officer who 
responded accordingly.  Details discussed included:- 

 

• The process of contacting households that were claiming Single 
Person Discount; 

• The information supplied to Data Tank in order to undertake the 
necessary checks on properties; 

• The importance of not preventing genuine applicants applying for 
Single Person Discount; 

• Work undertaken by Fraud Officers within the Finance Department; 

• Use of a similar exercise in the future. 

Page 4



Minutes of the Audit Committee (30.11.2014) Cont’d 

 
RESOLVED that: 

 
 (1) the contents of the presentation be noted; 
 
 (2) a follow-up report be provided in the future; 
 

(3) the Head of Finance and Delivery circulates details of the 
presentation to the Committee. 

 
43. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 2014/15 - MONITORING REPORT 

FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2014 TO 30 JUNE 2014 
 
 The Chief Auditor presented the Internal Audit Plan 2014/15 - 

Monitoring Report for the period 1 April 2014 to 30 June 2014.  The 
report detailed the audits finalised and any other work undertaken by 
the Internal Audit Section.  It was added that a total of 21 audits were 
finalised during quarter 1 and these were listed at Appendix 1 which 
also showed the level of assurance given at the end of the audit and 
the number of recommendations made and agreed.   

 
 The Committee asked questions of the Officer who responded 

accordingly.  The key issues arising from discussions included:- 
 

• The reasons for a moderate assurance level provided for the 
Accounts Receivable Section; 

• Raising and recovery of social care and school debts; 

• Authorisation of starter forms by Human Resources staff and the 
need for moving to computerised systems in future; 

• The reasons for a moderate assurance level for the audit on 
Seaview Primary School.   

 
 RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted. 
 
44. RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE  
 
 The Head of Finance and Delivery presented a report which sought to 

update the Committee on the process of risk management, reporting 
and mitigation across the Council.   

 
 The report detailed the risk management process that currently exists 

within the City and County of Swansea.  It also identified the 
organisational levels of risk as identified and recorded together with the 
reporting and review arrangements that are undertaken to ensure 
currency of risk issues.  The report further identified the structure of the 
current risk registers and the additional ways that risk is reported as 
part of the corporate decision-making process. 

 
 Members asked questions of the Officer who responded accordingly.  

Details of the discussions included:- 

Page 5



Minutes of the Audit Committee (30.11.2014) Cont’d 

 
• Equal pay payments; 

• Pay awards; 

• Job evaluation appeals; 

• Sustainable Swansea work stream savings; 

• Areas of spend around Social Services, particularly Adult Services 
and Mental Health Services; 

• Key areas of Education spend around out of school tuition; 

• Reduction in employment training grants. 
 
 It was added that details of partnership working will be reported in the 

Annual Governance Statement which was planned for quarter 1 in 
2015.   

 
 RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted. 
 
45. AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 
 
 The updated Audit Committee Work Plan was provided for information.   
 
 The Committee requested that the following be added to the Work 

Plan: 
 

• Procurement in schools; 

• Auditing of Section 106 Planning Agreements. 
  

The PwC representative added that the PwC Controls Report 2013/14 
and PwC Annual Audit Letter 2013/14 will be reported to the meeting 
scheduled for 27 November 2014. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
(1) the contents of the report be noted; 
 
(2) Procurement in schools and Auditing of Section 106 Planning 

Agreements be added to the Work Plan.   
 

46. DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 3.00 P.M. ON THURSDAY 27 
NOVEMBER 2014 

 
NOTED that the next meeting be held at 3.00 p.m. on Thursday 27 
November 2014. 

 
 The meeting ended at 4.20 p.m.  
 
 

CHAIR 
 
 

S: Audit Committee - 30 October 2014  
(JEP/KL)  

Page 6



 

Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls 

City and County of Swansea 

Audit year: 2013-14 

Issued: November 2014 

Document reference: C14229 

 

Purpose of this document 

This document is a draft supplied in confidence solely for the purpose of verifying the accuracy and 

completeness of the information contained in it and to obtain views on the conclusions reached.  

Handling prior to publication 

This document and the copyright comprised therein is and remains the property of the Auditor 

General for Wales and/or the Appointed Auditor. It contains information, which has been obtained 

under statutory functions solely to discharge statutory functions and has been prepared as the 

basis for an official document that may be issued or published in due course. It may also contain 

information the unauthorised disclosure of which may be an offence under section 54 of the Public 

Audit (Wales) Act 2004. Except as expressly permitted by law, neither the document nor any of its 

content may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system and/or transmitted in any form or by any 

means, or disclosed to any person other than the original recipient without the prior written 

permission of the relevant Engagement Director. It must be safeguarded at all times to prevent 

publication or other improper use of its content. Unauthorised use or disclosure may result in legal 

proceedings. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4a



Status of report 

Page 2 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

This document has been prepared for the internal use of City and County of Swansea as 

part of work performed in accordance with the statutory functions. 

No responsibility is taken by the Auditor General, the staff of the Wales Audit Office or, 

where applicable, the appointed auditor in relation to any member, director, officer or other 

employee in their individual capacity, or to any third party. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, 

attention is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of 

Information Act 2000. The section 45 Code sets out the practice in the handling of requests 

that is expected of public authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In 

relation to this document, the Auditor General for Wales, the Wales Audit Office and, where 

applicable, the appointed auditor are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding 

disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at 

infoofficer@wao.gov.uk. 

The team who delivered the work comprised Kevin Williams, Engagement Leader and 

Rebecca Nelson, Engagement Manager of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.  

 

 

Page 8



Contents 

Page 3 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

As part of the 2013-14 audit, internal control deficiencies have been identified which merit 

reporting to Audit Committee. 

 

Summary report  

Introduction 4 

No significant deficiencies in internal control have been identified, however 

recommendation have been raised for the Authority in order to further improve 

its control environment 

4 

The authority has made progress in enhancing its control environment and 

implementing recommendations raised last year 

4 

Acknowledgments   6 

 

 

Page 9



Summary report 

Page 4 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

Introduction 

1. Anthony Barrett, as Appointed Auditor, is responsible for providing an opinion on 

whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 

City and County of Swansea (“the Authority”) at 31 March 2014 and its income and 

expenditure for the year then ended. 

2. The Appointed Auditor is required to obtain an understanding of the internal controls 

relevant to the audit when identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement. 

The Authority’s internal controls were considered in order to design audit procedures, 

to provide sufficient assurance to allow the Appointed Auditor to express an opinion on 

the truth and fairness of the financial statements. They were not considered for the 

purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. 

No significant deficiencies in internal control have been identified, however recommendation 

have been raised for the Authority in order to further improve its control environment 

 

3. This work has been completed, and has identified 19 deficiencies in the Authority’s 

internal controls. The matters covered in this report are limited to those which in the 

Appointed Auditor’s opinion are of sufficient importance to merit reporting to you in the 

context of your governance role. None of these matters are deemed to be of significant 

risk. These issues have already been discussed with the Head of Finance and 

Delivery. 

The Authority has made progress in enhancing its control environment and implementing 

recommendations raised last year 

 

4. We have also followed up the recommendations raised in the prior year controls report 

issued in November 2013. We have found that all of the 15 recommendations raised in 

the prior year have been implemented.  None of the outstanding recommendations are 

deemed to be of significant risk. 

5. The matters identified are set out in the table below. 

  

Page 10



 

Page 5 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

 

System No of 

recommendations 

in prior year 

Implemented* Not fully 

implemented 

New 

recommendations 

Total 

General Ledger 1 1 0 1 1 

Fixed Assets 3 3 0 8 8 

IT Controls 5 5 0 0 0 

Liabilities 3 3 0 2 2 

Related party 

transactions 

1 1 0 1 1 

Financial 

Instruments 

1 1 0 1 1 

Treasury and cash 

management 

0 0 0 2 2 

Creditors and 

payments 

0 0 0 1 1 

Debtors and income 0 0 0 2 2 

Consolidation 1 1 0 0 0 

Internal Audit 0 0 0 1 1 

Total 15 15 0 19 19 

 

*This includes recommendations that are deemed to have been superseded or no longer 

applicable 

  

Page 11



 

Page 6 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

6. This section of our report seeks to inform management of the matters arising from our 

review of the arrangements in place, and our recommendations for action. It is not 

intended to provide a complete overview of the financial systems and procedures of 

the Authority.  

7. We reviewed the following systems as part of our interim audit: 

• Investments and borrowing; 

• Treasury and cash management; 

• Income and debtors; 

• Capital expenditure; 

• Purchasing and payables; 

• Payroll; 

• Projects / DLO; 

• Central Transport Unit; 

• Housing rents; 

• Property, Plant and Equipment valuations; 

• Social Services; and 

• Schools consolidation procedures. 

 

8. We met with Internal Audit during the course of our interim audit and have conducted a 

review of the core financial systems internal audit reports to inform our risk 

assessment and understanding of these systems. We were able to partially place 

reliance on the work of Internal Audit with regards to payroll controls. 

9. A number of new recommendations have been raised as a result of our interim and 

final audit work. These recommendations have been detailed below. 

Acknowledgements 

10. We would like to thank all staff involved for the co-operation and assistance provided 

to us during the course of our audit work. 

Page 12



Summary report 

Page 7 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

New recommendations 

 

No Observation Implication Recommendation Management response 

Financial instruments 

1 Review of  investment and 

borrowing transactions 

We noted that a weekly summary of 

investment and borrowing 

transactions is prepared and the 

closing balance is agreed to the 

interest register. However, there is 

no evidence of the summary and 

reconciliation being reviewed by an 

officer independent of the preparer. 

There is an increased risk that 

investment and borrowing 

transactions may not be accurately 

recorded. 

 

We recommend that evidence of 
review of the summary and 
reconciliation is recorded and 
retained for future reference.  

Agreed 

  

P
age 13



 

Page 8 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Implication Recommendation Management response 

Property, Plant and Equipment  

2 Consideration of assets not 

formally revalued during the year 

The Code of Practice requires that 

land and buildings are included 

within the financial statements at fair 

value. Authority did not perform an 

assessment of the potential 

movement in value of land and 

building assets not formally revalued 

during the year.  

A material movement in the value of 

land and buildings may not be 

identified.  

For 2014/15 all land and building 

assets will be formally revalued. 

However, management should 

ensure that, in subsequent years, 

consideration is given to potential 

changes in the value of assets not 

formally revalued during the year in 

question.   

For 2014/15 all land and building 
assets will be formally revalued and 
a beacon approach of valuation will 
commence from 2015/16. 

3 Downward movements in fair 

value 

For four assets the full downward 

movement in fair value had been 

posted to the revaluation reserve 

where there were no previous 

upward revaluation movements 

available to be reversed. Negative 

revaluation reserve balances are not 

generally permitted; as such these 

movements should have been 

posted to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement. 

There is an increased risk of a 

misstatement of the Council’s 

reserves balances 

 

It is recommended that controls are 

established to ensure that postings 

to the revaluation reserve to the 

extent that there is a balance on the 

revaluation reserve for that asset to 

offset the downward movement. Any 

additional downward valuation 

should be posted to the 

Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement.  

Agreed. 

 

P
age 14



 

Page 9 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Implication Recommendation Management response 

4 Discounted cash flow model for 

council dwellings 

The cost of loan finance is included 

within the discounted cash flow 

model used to value council 

dwellings. This treatment is 

considered to be unusual, in the 

context of similar valuations 

performed by other organisations. 

The value attributed to council 

dwellings is not comparable with 

that reported by other organisations. 

 

Consideration should be given to 

whether including such costs within 

the discounted cash flow model is 

the most appropriate treatment.  

Agreed - Consideration will be given 
for 14/15. 

5 Guildhall valuation 

Building works at the Guildhall have 

resulted in the reconfiguration of a 

number of rooms. The facilities team 

are in the process of measuring the 

rooms to provide new floor plans 

which will impact the valuer’s 

assessment of the fair value of the 

property.  

The valuation of the Guildhall may 

be misstated.  

Upon completion of the floor plans 

the Guildhall should be revalued to 

take account of its new room 

configuration. 

Agreed – Consideration will be given 

for 14/15. Specifically, this asset will 

be reviewed following any 

subsequent changes to the layout of 

the Guildhall that would impact on 

the asset valuation. 

 

 

6 Integrity of valuation working 

papers  

The age and obsolescence 

assumption used in the valuation of 

one asset (Abergelli Day Centre) 

had been altered without the 

valuer’s knowledge.  

The valuation of land and building 

assets may be misstated. 

It is recommended that the valuer 

password protects valuation working 

papers to ensure that the risk 

unauthorised amendments is 

minimised.  

Agreed - Consideration will be given 

to the password protection of 

spreadsheets in the future. 

P
age 15



 

Page 10 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Implication Recommendation Management response 

7 Review of outputs 

The valuation of assets included in 

the statement of accounts is not 

formally reviewed by an 

independent member of the 

valuations team. 

Errors in the valuation model may 

not be identified resulting in assets 

being reported at the incorrect 

value. 

The work of the valuer should be 

formally reviewed in order to 

minimise the risk that any errors 

remain undetected.  

Agreed – Consideration will be 
given. 

8 Heritage assets  

Heritage assets need to be valued 

to an extent such that the cost of 

undertaking such valuations would 

be commensurate with the benefits 

to the users of the financial 

statements. A number of heritage 

assets, including some buildings, 

are held in the accounts at a 

nominal value. 

The value of heritage assets may be 

understated. 

Consideration should be given to 

including heritage assets within the 

rolling programme of valuing land 

and building assets as the cost of 

undertaking such valuations would 

be relatively low given that specialist 

knowledge already exists. 

Agreed. However, it is noted that the 

Council does not have the expertise 

to undertake valuations of a number 

of Heritage assets, including a wide 

range of works of art, statues and 

remains of former buildings. The 

cost of undertaking such valuations 

would need to be undertaken by 

external valuers at a cost which may 

not be commensurate to the users 

of the financial statements.  

P
age 16



 

Page 11 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Implication Recommendation Management response 

9 Infrastructure assets 

The Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting is expected to 

require local authorities to account 

for their infrastructure assets in the 

statement of accounts in 

accordance with the Infrastructure 

Assets Code from 2016/2017. For 

older infrastructure assets the 

authority could not locate or provide 

supporting documentation to 

demonstrate ownership. 

The Council may not have the 

information required to ensure 

compliance.  

The Council should consider the 

requirement of the Infrastructure 

Asset Code at an early stage to 

maximise the opportunity to follow 

up information that is wrong  

Agreed. 

Liabilities 

10 Insurance provision 

The split between short term and 

long term provisions had been made 

on an estimate based on an analysis 

of claims and how long they take to 

settle. No supporting documentation 

was provided to support the 

estimates used. 

The classification of the insurance 

provision between short term and 

long term may be inappropriate. 

It is recommendation that an 

exercise should be completed to 

analyse the Authority’s claims to 

ensure that the provision is based 

upon the most up to date 

information. 

A supporting calculation will be 

provided. 

P
age 17



 

Page 12 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Implication Recommendation Management response 

11 Early retirement / voluntary 

redundancy (ER / VR) 

No formal consideration has been 

given to whether any teacher related 

costs needed to be included in the 

ER/VR accrual in instances where 

approval has been given in 2013/14 

but the departure date was not until 

2014/15. The subsequent review 

undertaken at our request confirmed 

that no teacher costs should have 

been accrued in 2013/14. 

The ER / VR provision may be 

misstated.   

The requirement to accrue for 

teacher related costs should be 

considered in the same way as it is 

for other Council employees.  

 

The recommendation is accepted 

and we will ensure that a formal and 

documented consideration of any 

teachers ER/VR costs, if applicable, 

is accrued for. 

  P
age 18



 

Page 13 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Implication Recommendation Management response 

Treasury and cash management 

12 Petty cash reconciliations  

Reconciliations of petty cash 

balances are not performed for 

every account as at 31 March. 

Reconciliations are performed on an 

ad hoc basis. 

There is a risk that petty cash 

balances may not be accurately 

recorded as at 31 March. 

Petty cash reconciliations should be 

performed on a regular basis, 

including as at 31 March. 

The Authority will consider 

undertaking petty cash 

reconciliations for relevant accounts 

on a risk adjusted basis. 

13 School bank balances 

For school bank accounts, 

differences between the balance as 

per the bank reconciliation and the 

bank confirmation were noted 

because school accounts are shut 

down before 31 March. Whilst no 

manual payments could go through 

the accounts there were automated 

transactions which were not 

recorded within the cash books 

maintained.  

The schools bank balance may not 

be recorded accurately.  

All bank reconciliations should be 

completed as at 31 March of each 

year. 

Agree with recommendation. 

Control issue more to do with timing 

than anything else (e.g. availability 

of bank statements). 

  

P
age 19



 

Page 14 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Implication Recommendation Management response 

Related party transactions 

14 Identification of related parties  

The current process for identifying 

related parties is reliant on 

management's knowledge. Whilst the 

prior year listing of related parties is 

reviewed, this process is somewhat 

informal. 

The related party transactions, 

disclosed in the statement of 

account may not be complete.  

A more formal approach for the 

identification of related parties 

should be established to ensure that 

the risk of omission is minimised. 

The risk is accepted and a more 

formal and robust assessment to 

identify potential related parties will 

be undertaken. 

General Ledger 

15 Journals 

Individuals within finance can create 

post and authorise their own journals 

if they are within their authorisation 

limits. We note however that there 

are mitigating controls through the 

monthly monitoring of budgets and 

the year-end closure procedures, 

which would help to identify any 

journals inappropriately posted. 

The lack of segregation of duties 

may result in the posting of 

inappropriate journals. 

Consideration should be given to 

implementing a process for 

reviewing all journals posted to the 

nominal ledger.  

The Authority has considered this 

recommendation and deems that 

the journal approval process in 

place is appropriate. All journal lines 

above a specific value are sent for 

approval to more senior staff. For 

example, an accountancy assistant 

can post and approve journal lines 

up to £250k, principal accountants 

up to £500k, group accountants up 

to £1m and chief accountant 

unlimited. The Authority believes 

that these journal approval limits 

and monthly budget monitoring and 

PFM meetings ensures there is 

financial control and that journals 

are appropriately posted. Over 

7,000 journal lines were approved in 

P
age 20



 

Page 15 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Implication Recommendation Management response 

2013/14.  

Creditors and payments 

16 Supporting documentation 

Supporting documentation for three 
balances that have been tested could 
not be obtained. It is noted that the 
Authority was subsequently able to 
support these balances. 

Creditors may be inappropriately 
recognised or recorded at the wrong 
value.   

It should be ensured that supporting 
documentation is available for 
creditor balances 

Agreed 

Debtors and income 

17 Bad debt write off 

It was noted that six batches of 
invoices designated for write off date 
back to 2012. The value of each of 
these batches was in excess of £10k. 
Delays were noted in obtaining the 
necessary approvals for these write 
offs to be actioned.  

If bad debts are not written off in a 
timely manner outturn for the year 
and the debtors balance may be 
overstated.  

It should be ensured that any 
balances identified for write off 
should be processed in a timely 
manner.  

The necessary Head of Service and 
Cabinet Member will be reminded of 
their responsibilities in this regard   

18 Debtors listings 

A detailed listing of debtors from the 
estates rents system as at 31 March 
could not be provided. This is 
because the system is live and 
reports cannot be retrospectively 
created.   

The estates rents debtor balances 
cannot be adequately substantiated.  

A report detailing all estates rent 
debtors at year end should be 
produced as part of year end 
procedures 

Agreed. New personnel were not 
aware of this requirement at the 
time of audit. The estates rental 
system is alive system so reports 
must be run on the 31 March – it 
cannot be created retrospectively.

 

  

P
age 21



 

Page 16 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Implication Recommendation Management response 

Internal Audit 

19 Internal audit capacity 

The Internal Audit function consists 
of staff totalling 11.6 FTE. 
Approximately 300 days of planned 
internal audit work for 2013/14 were 
not delivered due to time spent on 
special investigations and vacant 
posts.  

The internal audit programme was 
not fully completed during the year 
and, as a result control deficiencies 
may not have been identified.  

Consideration should be given to the 
way in which the work of internal 
audit is prioritised to focus on high 
risk areas. Sufficient allowances 
should be made within the 
programme to allow for a 
reasonable level of unplanned work 
or unplanned absence.  

The Internal Audit Section already 
uses a risk based approach to 
prioritise work. An exercise was 
undertaken during 2013/14 to 
identify the audits which would be 
deferred due to the loss of 
productive time. This exercise used 
a risk based approach and was 
reported to the Audit Committee. 

The Annual Audit Plan already 
includes time for special 
investigations and contingency – 
177 days were included in the 
2013/14 Plan for these items. At the 
time the Plan was prepared, this 
was felt to be a realistic allowance. 

  

P
age 22



 

Page 17 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

 

Prior year recommendations 

 

No Observation Recommendation Current Status Management response 

IT Controls 

1 Northgate Council Tax application – 

administrative access 

We noted that Security Administrative 

rights are held by Senior Members of 

the department. We would not 

normally expect senor staff to have 

such administrator rights, as it is not in 

line with their roles and responsibilities 

and allows too great a level of access 

to the system. 

In addition to the above, we also noted 

that one administration profile is not 

being used.  

We recommend that the security 

administration rights for the senior 

members of the department are 

removed.  

Furthermore, we recommend that 

the unused administration profile 

is investigated and removed. 

Administration rights of senior 

members of the department have 

now been removed along with the 

unused administration profile. 

This recommendation is therefore 
closed. 

 

P
age 23



 

Page 18 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Recommendation Current Status Management response 

2 Civica Icon Application – 

Administrator accounts 

We noted that the Chief Cashier uses 

two accounts with administrator rights, 

one for business as usual activities 

and another generic account for user 

administration in both the hosted and 

local version of the application.  

In addition, there were several test 

accounts with administrative rights on 

the local version of the application.  

We recommend that the generic 

account should be deleted and it 

should be ensured that only the 

named Chief Cashier account is 

used. 

We recommend that only one 

account is used for test purposes 

and all other test accounts are 

deleted. 

 

Only the named Chief Cashier 

account is used in both hosted and 

local versions of the system 

Only one account is used for test 

purposes. 

This recommendation is therefore 

closed. 

- 

3 Terminated access rights Active 

Directory 

Four accounts were identified which 

were not deleted following the user 

leaving employment at the Authority. It 

was not possible to obtain the last log 

on date for these leavers.  

However, we did not identify any 

exceptions with leavers for the specific 

applications we tested. This reduces 

the risk associated with this finding as 

although the account could be used for 

accessing the Council’s IT system, it 

could not be used for accessing 

specific software applications. 

We recommend that these 

accounts be investigated and 

disabled as soon as possible and 

that procedures are put in place to 

ensure that when an employee 

leaves the Authority the accounts 

are identified and disabled on a 

timely basis. 

 

There is a leavers process whereby 

monthly a leavers report is run from 

ISIS and compared against the active 

directory and disabled/deleted as 

appropriate.  The 4 anomalies that 

were identified at the time were 

investigated and have been disabled. 

This recommendation is therefore 

closed. 

 

P
age 24



 

Page 19 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Recommendation Current Status Management response 

4 Recertification’s of user accounts 

Civica Icon – we noted that 

recertification is only performed over 

the cashier accounts and not over all 

accounts within the hosted and the 

local version of the application. 

Axise – we noted that no recertification 

of user accounts is completed for this 

system. 

 

Civica Icon - a user account 

review should be performed, with 

all accounts within the application 

being reviewed and recertified for 

use. This would ensure that only 

valid accounts with appropriate 

access rights exist within the 

application. 

Axise - a user access review 

should be carried out at least 

annually in order to obtain comfort 

that the user accounts, rights and 

segregation of duties within the 

application are appropriate. 

 

An annual e-mail to is sent to 

sections requesting notification of 

any leavers. 

This was completed in October 2013 

and November 2014 

This recommendation is therefore 

closed. 

 

5 Access requests for the Civica Icon 

application 

It is noted that access requests to the 

application are received from a new 

starters line manager. However the 

application administrator does not 

maintain evidence of these requests. 

As requests are received via 

email, we recommend that the 

user access requests are saved 

to a separate archive folder and 

that the super users’ authorisation 

emails are also stored in an email 

archive for audit trail purposes. 

 

From our walkthrough of the 

process it is noted that access 

requests are retained in order to 

ensure an audit trail is in place 

This recommendation is therefore 

closed. 

- 

  

P
age 25



 

Page 20 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Recommendation Current Status Management response 

General Ledger 

6 Internal charges 

From our work on the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement we 

noted that gross income and gross 

expenditure figures for Highways and 

Transportation were not presented net 

of internal recharges in the Statement 

of Accounts. 

This is due to the failure to utilise the 

discrete ledger codes which are being 

maintained specifically for internal 

recharges. 

We recommend that staff are 

reminded of the importance of 

ensuring that recharges are 

maintained on discrete ledger 

codes to ensure that they can be 

properly identified and correctly 

adjusted for during the accounts 

preparation process. 

 

From our work on the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for 2013/14 
we did not identify any instances 
of “grossing up” of transactions. 

This recommendation is therefore 
closed  

 

- 

Liabilities 

7 Provision for debtors in dispute 

From our work on accounts receivable 

we noted exceptions where the debtor 

balance was in dispute or not fully 

agreed as at the balance sheet date. It 

was ascertained that the service 

department consider it is unlikely that 

these balances will be collected or 

recovered post year end. Therefore, an 

assessment of the requirement for a 

write off or provision should have been 

undertaken. 

A review of debtors should take 

place to ensure that any debts 

which are unlikely to be collected 

are provided. Further processes 

should be put in place to ensure 

that individual departments 

communicate such instances to 

the finance department on a 

timely basis.   

 

From our testing of accounts 
receivable in 2013/14 we did not 
note any instances where the 
balance was in dispute.  

This recommendation is therefore 
closed.  

 

- 

P
age 26



 

Page 21 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Recommendation Current Status Management response 

8 Interest classification 

In our testing of financial liabilities, we 

identified that all of the accrued 

interest to be paid on borrowing had 

been included in the long term 

borrowing balance. 

As interest will be paid within the next 

12 months it is appropriate to include it 

as a current liability (i.e. within short 

term borrowing). 

The year-end borrowing balance 

should be reviewed to determine 

the amount relating to accrued 

interest. This should then be 

reclassified to short term 

borrowing. 

 

No issues were noted with regard 
to the classification of accrued 
interest. 

This recommendation is therefore 
closed.  

 

P
age 27



 

Page 22 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Recommendation Current Status Management response 

9 Equal pay: review of data 

During our work performed in respect 
of the equal pay provision we noted 
inconsistencies in the information 
received from the Finance, Legal and 
Job Evaluation teams.  

This resulted in a difference in number 
of claimants per the list maintained by 
the legal team and the list used to 
calculate the provision. Such 
differences occur as a result of a 
number of individuals who had 
negotiated a COT3 settlement and so 
are not eligible to claim prior to 31 
March 2010. These individuals were 
incorrectly included within the equal 
pay provision calculation and the 
impact of this was an overstatement of 
the provision by £533k. 

There were also individuals who were 
included on the list from Legal and not 
included in the provision. The impact of 
this difference was estimated as an 
understatement of the provision by 
£370k. 

This was subsequently amended by 
the finance team as noted in the 
control point above. 

In relation to those individuals who 
have put in a claim but the Council 
have found no record the employee 
and average claim amount was applied 
to these individuals. This calculation 
was not updated on receipt of the 
revised model by the finance team. 

We recommend that the Council 
undertakes a rigorous review of 
the underlying data supporting the 
equal pay provision. 

This will need to be performed 
with the involvement of a number 
of the Council’s teams, e.g. HR, 
Legal, Finance and the Job 
Evaluation teams. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Authority has undertaken a 
substantial review of the claims that it 
has received and significant progress 
has been made. 

Although we note that a small 
number of claims remain outstanding 
in which underlying changes in 
assumptions could change the value 
of the claim, it is recognised the 
majority of claims have been agreed 
and settled.  

The Authority has put in place a 
process, involving appropriate 
officers from finance and internal 
audit, which reduces the risk of 
claims being settled at the wrong 
value.  

This recommendation is therefore 
closed.  

 

 

P
age 28



 

Page 23 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Recommendation Current Status Management response 

Financial Instruments 

10 Classification of financial 
instruments 

The financial instrument note in the 

draft Statement of Accounts did not 

fully reconcile to the primary 

statements. This is in part due to 

including cash and cash equivalent 

balances within investments in the 

financial instrument note. 

The CIPFA Code of Practice should 

be reviewed to ensure that the 

disclosure requirements for the 

reporting of financial instruments is 

met. Additionally, the presentation of 

the note should be reviewed to 

ensure that it can be used by the 

reader of the Statement of Accounts 

to understand fully how the Council 

has used financial instruments in 

managing its balance sheet. 

 

From our work on the financial 

instruments note in 2013/14 was 

produced in a manner which was 

largely compliant with the CIPFA 

Code of Practice. 

This recommendation is therefore 

closed. 

 

 

- 

Fixed assets 

11 Guildhall valuation 

The Guildhall has not been formally 

revalued in the past 5 years. Instead 

the asset has been valued by way of 

the application of an index however it 

is unlikely that the valuation is 

materially misstated.  

The Guildhall should be formally 

valued during 2013/14 to ensure 

that is it being recognised at an 

appropriate value. 

It is noted that the Guildhall was 

formally valued during 2013/14. 

This recommendation is therefore 

closed. 

 

- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 29



 

Page 24 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Recommendation Current Status Management response 

12 Valuation of heritage assets 

During our review of heritage assets, 

we found that several insurance 

valuations had been commissioned in 

2012 in order to assign a value to 

these assets. 

However, several older valuations 

were used to bring these items onto 

the balance sheet in 2011/12. 

Further, there are additional heritage 

assets, which could be valued. The 

fact that a value for these assets was 

not included in the balance sheets was 

disclosed in the accounts. 

The Authority needs to ensure 

that there are processes in place 

going forwards to keep the 

valuation of heritage assets up to 

date. This could include adding 

heritage assets to the rolling 

programme of asset valuations, 

and an annual consideration of 

valuation methods for each class 

of asset. In addition, the Authority 

will need to ensure an annual 

impairment assessment is 

undertaken. 

 

This recommendation has been 

superseded by recommendation 8 in 

appendix 1 above 

- 

13 Calculation of the capital financing 
requirement 

During our review of the calculation of 

the capital financing requirement 

(CFR), we were unable to reconcile the 

opening CFR balance to the closing 

balance sheet for the prior year. 

It was identified by the Authority that 

there was an issue in the prior year 

with the double counting of fixed asset 

additions, and the inclusion of items 

which were not strictly additions to the 

underlying financing requirement, but 

rather reclassifications. 

Going forwards, the Authority 

should ensure when calculating 

the CFR that it only includes the 

impact of genuine additions to the 

fixed asset balance, and not items 

which are merely reclassifications. 

 

No issues were noted with regards to 

the CFR calculation in 2013/14 

 

- 

P
age 30



 

Page 25 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Recommendation Current Status Management response 

Consolidation 

14 Consolidation 

From our work on consolidation it was 

noted that accounts for its subsidiary, 

the Swansea City Waste Disposal 

Company (LAWDC), had not been 

received despite officers repeatedly 

requesting the information from the 

company.  Therefore, the Authority 

was required to make a series of 

assumptions based on limited 

information in order to prepare the 

group accounts. 

The Authority should ensure that 

appropriate financial information 

is obtained in order to enable the 

Authority to fulfil its obligations to 

produce group accounts and to 

enable the effective management 

of its interest in the company. 

 

In 2013/14 financial information 

was obtained for LAWDC which 

was used to demonstrate that the 

consolidating entries would not be 

material. However, no information 

was obtained in order to allow 

consolidating entries to be 

accurately calculated. 

It is noted that the assets and 

liabilities of LAWDC have been 

transferred to the Authority; as 

such the company is no longer 

trading or operating. 

As it is expected that the 

consolidating entries for 2014/15 

will be minimal, this 

recommendation is closed. 

 

- 

  

P
age 31



 

Page 26 of 27 - Report of Deficiencies in Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea 

No Observation Recommendation Current Status Management response 

Related party transactions 

15 Declarations of Interest 

Declarations of interest are disclosed 

on the Authority’s website. These are 

updated directly by both members and 

senior staff. A number of these profiles 

have not been updated for several 

years. 

The Authority should ensure a 

robust process is in place to 

capturing members and senior 

management's declared interests. 

This would aid public scrutiny and 

transparency and governance. It 

could be used to inform 

judgements on whether additional 

related parties disclosures are 

required within the financial 

statements. 

 

From our work on declarations of 

interest, we noted no issues with 

regards to completeness.  

This recommendation is therefore 

closed.  

 

- 

 

P
age 32



Page 33



 

 

 

Page 34



  

Report of the Chief Auditor 
 

Audit Committee – 27 November 2014 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 2014/15 
MONITORING REPORT FOR THE PERIOD  
1st JULY 2014 TO 30th SEPTEMBER 2014 

 
 

Purpose: 
 

This report shows the audits finalised and any 
other work undertaken by the Internal Audit 
Section during the period 1st July 2014 to 30th 
September 2014. 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

None.  

Reason for Decision:  
 

To allow the Audit Committee to discuss and 
monitor progress against the Internal Audit 
Annual Plan 2014/15. 
 

Consultation: 
 

Legal, Finance, Access to Services. 

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that: the Committee review 
and discuss the work of the Internal Audit Section 
and note the contents of the report. 
 

Report Author: Paul Beynon 
 

Finance Officer: Paul Beynon 
 

Legal Officer: Sharon Heys 
 

Access to Services 
Officer: 

Sherill Hopkins 

 

 
 

1.  Introduction 

 
1.1 The Internal Audit Annual Plan 2014/15 was approved by the Audit 

Committee on 24th April 2014 and quarterly monitoring reports will be 
presented throughout the year to allow Committee to review and 
comment upon the progress of the Internal Audit Section in achieving 
the Annual Plan. 

 
1.2 This report shows the audits which were finalised in the period 1st July 

2014 to 30th September 2014. 
 
 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



  

2.  Audits Finalised 1st July 2014 to 30th September 2014 

 
2.1 A total of 109 days was lost in Quarter 2 due to the following 

vacancies.  
 

• A Senior Auditor post remained vacant throughout the period 
following the promotion of the previous postholder to Group 
Auditor. The post has been advertised and will be filled during 
Quarter 3 

• An Auditor gained promotion to cover for a maternity leave in the 
Accountancy Section. An agency auditor has been employed to 
cover this post until a temporary appointment is made to cover the 
post until May 2015 

• An part time Auditor took retirement on 31/07/14 
 
2.2 A total of 16 audits were finalised during Quarter 2. The audits 

finalised are listed in Appendix 1 which also shows the level of 
assurance given at the end of the audit and the number of 
recommendations made and agreed. 

 
2.3 An analysis of the audits finalised during the 1st quarter is shown in 

the following table 
 

Assurance 
Level 

High Substantial Moderate Limited 

Number 2 13 1 0 

 
2.4 A total of 115 audit recommendations were made and management 

agreed to implement 114 recommendations i.e. 99.1% against a 
target of 98%.  

 
2.5 The following table shows brief details of the significant issues which 

led to the Waste Management audit being considered to be 
‘moderate’. There were other less significant findings also included in 
the final audit report issued. 

 

Audit Assurance 
Level 

Reasons 

Waste 
Management 

Moderate • Significant budget overspends 

• Inadequate system back up 
procedures 

 
2.6 A Management Action Plan which includes a series of recommendations 

to address the issues arising from the Waste Management audit has 
been agreed with the service. A follow up audit will be arranged within 6 
months of the final report being issued to confirm that the agreed 
recommendations have been implemented. 

 

Page 36



  

2.7 In addition, the Internal Audit Section also certified the following grants 
as required by the terms and conditions of the grant issued by the 
funding body. 

 

 Grant Amount 
£ 

Foundation Phase Grant 2013/14 7,333,341 

Revenue and Training Grant 2013/11 213,631 

School Uniform Grant 2011/13 – 2013/14 172,213 

Out of School Childcare Grant 2013/14 164,712 

National Trading Standards Board Grant 2013/14 150,000 

 
2.8 In each case, it was found that the grant had been spent in accordance 

with the terms and conditions although in some cases recommendations 
were made to improve control over the grants in future years. 

 
3. Follow Ups Completed 1st June 2013 to 30th September 2013 
 
3.1 The follow up procedures operated by the Internal Audit Section 

includes visits to any non fundamental audits which received a 
‘moderate’ or ‘limited’ level of assurance to confirm that action has 
been taken by management to address the concerns raised during the 
original audit. 

 
3.2 The follow up visit is usually within 6 months of the final report being 

issued and includes testing to ensure that any ‘high’ or ‘medium’ risk 
recommendations have been implemented. Where agreed 
recommendations have not been implemented, this will be reported to 
the appropriate Head of Service (or Chair of the Governing Body in 
the case of schools) and the Head of Finance and Delivery. 

 
3.3 During the 2nd quarter follow up visits were made to the following 

services 
 

• ISiS Change Control 

• ICS Administration 

• Grand Theatre Catering 

• YGG Tirdeunaw  

• Bishop Gore Comprehensive School 
 
3.4 The follow up visits to YGG Tirdeunaw and Bishop Gore both showed 

that substantial progress had been made in implementing the agreed 
recommendations. 

 
3.5 However, delays were identified in progressing the agreed 

recommendations for both ICT audits which were mainly due to the re-
structuring of the service which is taking place following the 
appointment of a new Head of Service and the work involved in 
bringing the ICT service back in house. The recommendation which 

Page 37



  

have not been implemented have been escalated to the Head of 
Service and a further visit will be arranged within 3 months 

 
3.6 A failure to make progress to implement the recommendations 

regarding Grant Theatre Catering was also found. This has been 
escalated and a further visit is planned to review the implementation of 
the outstanding recommendations before Christmas. 

 
4 Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
4.1 There are no equality and engagement implications associated with 

this report 
 
5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 

6. Legal Implications 
 
6.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report. 
 

Background Papers:  Internal Audit Plan 2014/15 
  
Appendices:  Appendix 1 Internal Audit – Monitoring Report Quarter 2 2014/15 

Page 38



INTERNAL AUDIT - MONITORING REPORT QUARTER 2 2014/15
Appendix 1

Head of Service Audit Date Assurance 
Finalised Level Made Agreed Not Agreed

Cultural Services Special Events 23/07/14 High 4 4 0
Finance & Delivery Housing & Council Tax Benefit 08/08/14 High 3 3 0

Education Improvement
Ethnic Minority & Language Achievement 
Service 03/07/14 Substantial 6 6 0

Education Planning & Resources Oystermouth Primary School 09/07/14 Substantial 5 5 0
Information & Business Change Software Licensing 14/07/14 Substantial 5 5 0
Cultural Services St Helen's Ground 14/07/14 Substantial 2 2 0
Housing & Public Protection Blaenymaes District Housing Office 24/07/14 Substantial 9 9 0
Cultural Services Outdoor Leisure 24/07/14 Substantial 6 6 0
Housing & Public Protection Sketty District Housing Office 24/07/14 Substantial 13 13 0
Poverty & Prevention Play Team 29/07/14 Substantial 9 9 0
Cultural Services Cefn Hengoed Leisure Centre 31/07/14 Substantial 5 5 0
Cultural Services Penlan Leisure Centre 14/08/14 Substantial 13 13 0
Highways & Transportation Road Safety & School Crossing Patrols 04/09/14 Substantial 8 7 1
Finance & Delivery Accounts Payable 24/09/14 Substantial 10 10 0
Education Planning & Resources Bishopston Comprehensive School 29/09/14 Substantial 5 5 0
Waste Management Waste Management 22/08/14 Moderate 12 12 0

Total 115 114 1

Recommendations

P
age 39



Report of the Chief Auditor 
 

Audit Committee – 27 November 2014 
 

FUNDAMENTAL AUDITS 2013/14 – RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 

 
 

Purpose: 
 

This report provides a summary of the 
recommendations made following the 
fundamental audits 2013/14 and identifies 
whether the agreed recommendations have been 
implemented 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

None  

Reason for Decision:  
 

To allow the Audit Committee to fulfil its role in 
monitoring the implementation of audit 
recommendations 
 

Consultation: 
 

Legal, Finance. 

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that  
 

1) Committee review and discuss the 
progress made in implementing the 
recommendations made following the 
fundamental audits 2013/14 

2) A further update showing the position as at 
the end of January 2015 is provided to a 
future meeting of the Audit Committee 

 
Report Author: Paul Beynon 

 
Finance Officer: Paul Beynon 

 
Legal Officer: Sharon Heys 

 
Access to Services 
Officer: 

Sherill Hopkins 
 

 

 
1.   Introduction 

 
1.1 The Internal Audit Section introduced a Recommendations Tracker in 

2008/09 for fundamental audits in response to a recommendation 
made by PwC in their Interim Audit Report.  

 
1.2 The fundamental audits are the systems which are so significant to 

the achievement of the Council’s objectives that they are audited 

Page 40

Agenda Item 6



annually such as the Main Accounting System, Council Tax, Accounts 
Payable and Accounts Receivable. 

 
1.3 The Recommendations Tracker identifies the actions agreed by 

management at the end of each fundamental audit and tracks whether 
they have been implemented by the agreed date.  

 
1.4 The number of recommendations made following the fundamental 

audits 2013/14 was 71 which is a significant reduction on the previous 
year where 89 recommendations were made. 

 
1.5 This report summarises the position as at 31/08/14 on the 

implementation of the recommendations made following the 2013/14 
fundamental audits. 

  
 
2.  Recommendations Tracker 2013/14 

 
2.1 The following systems are considered to be fundamental and are 

subject to an annual audit although going forward some audits which 
have received the highest level of assurance for 3 consecutive years 
will be moving to a 2 yearly cycle of audits. 

 

• Main Accounting System 

• Fixed Assets 

• Housing and Council Tax Benefit 

• Council Tax 

• NNDR 

• Cash 

• Accounts Payable 

• Accounts Receivable 

• External Investments and Borrowing 

• Pension Fund Investments 

• Payroll 

• Pensions Administration 

• Teachers Pensions 

• Housing Rents 
 
2.2 The Fixed Assets audit had not been completed as at the end of 

August 2014 as the Auditor was seconded to the Accountancy Section 
in May 2014 to complete the Fixed Assets accounts for 2013/14 as the 
accountant suddenly went on sick leave with a serious illness. This 
audit will be completed during quarter 3 by a different member of staff. 

 
2.3 Appendix 1 shows, for each fundamental audit, the number of 

recommendations made following the 2013/14 audits and whether 
they have been implemented, partly implemented, not implemented or 
are not yet due. 

 

Page 41



2.4 The latest position on the 71 recommendations made is summarised 
in the following table 

 

Recommendations Number % 

Implemented 40 57 

Partly Implemented 1 1 

Not Implemented 1 1 

Not Yet Due 29 41 

Total 71 100 

 
2.5 Ignoring the recommendations which are not yet due for 

implementation, the percentage of recommendations implemented by 
31/08/14 is 97% which far exceeds the implementation rate for 
previous years. 

 
2.6 However, it is recognised that there are a large number of 

recommendations which are not yet due for implementation. Any 
failure to implement these recommendations over the remainder of the 
year will impact on the implementation rate. 

 
2.7 An analysis of the recommendations, which have been partly or not 

implemented over the classification of audit recommendations used by 
the Internal Audit Section, is attached in Appendix 2. The Appendix 
shows that the partly implemented recommendation is classed as low 
risk and the recommendation which had not been implemented is 
classed as medium risk. 

 
2.8 The recommendation which has been partly implemented is shown in 

Appendix 3 and the recommendation not implemented in Appendix 4.  
 
3. Conclusion 
 
3.1 Overall the results of the Recommendations Tracker exercise to the end 

of August 2014 are extremely positive with 97% of agreed 
recommendations due for implementation already implemented. 

 
3.2 However the large number of recommendations which were not due for 

implementation by the end of August means that it is too early to draw 
any firm conclusions regarding the Recommendations Tracker exercise 
for 2013/14. 

 
3.3 A further update will be provided to a future Audit Committee meeting 

giving the position at the end of January 2015. 
 
4. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
4.1 There are no equality and engagement implications associated with this 

report 
 
 

Page 42



5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 

 
6. Legal Implications 

 
6.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report. 
 
 

Background Papers:  Fundamental Audit Reports 2013/14 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Implementation of Recommendations 
   Appendix 2 – Classification of Recommendations 
   Appendix 3 – Partly Implemented Recommendations 
   Appendix 4 – Not Implemented Recommendations 

Page 43



Fundamental Audits 2013/14
Implementation of Recommendations

Appendix 1

Total No.
Audit Implemented Partly Not Not Yet of

Implemented Implemented Due Recs.

Fixed Assets 0
Main Accounting 0
Housing & Council Tax Benefit 3 3
Cash 1 1 2
NNDR 2 4 6
Council Tax 3 3
Accounts Receivable 12 1 6 19
Accounts Payable 10 10
Treasury Management 2 2
Pension Fund Investments 0
Payroll 7 8 15
Pensions Admin 5 1 6
Teachers Pensions 3 3
Housing Rents 2 2

Total 40 1 1 29 71

Recommendations

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 2013-14
19/11/14 Page 44



Fundamental Audits 2013/14
Classification of Recommendations

Appendix 2

Audit
HR MR LR GPR HR MR LR GPR

Fixed Assets
Main Accounting
Housing & Council Tax Benefit
Cash 1
NNDR
Council Tax
Accounts Receivable 1
Accounts Payable
Treasury Management
Pension Fund Investments
Payroll
Pensions Admin
Teachers Pensions
Housing Rents

Total 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0

Key
HR - High Risk
MR - Medium Risk
LR - Low Risk
GPR - Good Practice Recommendation

Partly Implemented Not Implemented

Page 45



Fundamental Audits 2013/14
Partly Implemented Recommendations

Appendix 3

Report Recommendation Class Agreed Action/Comments Responsibility Implementation Action
Ref For Date Taken

Implementation

Cash 2013/14

2.7.2

Physical Security / Security 
of Data

A review should be undertaken 
of the current arrangements 
that requires Contact Centre 
staff to pass through Cashiers' 
in order to reach the Contact 
Centre

LR Agreed. This matter will be 
discussed with Facilities 
Management

Chief Treasury & 
Technical 
Officer

July 2014 Partially implemented  - the 
issue has been raised with 
Facilities Management but no 
response has been received.

P
age 46



Fundamental Audits 2013/14
Not Implemented Recommendations

Appendix 4

Report Recommendation Class Agreed Action/Comments Responsibility Implementation Action
Ref For Date Taken

Implementation

Accounts Receivable 2013/14

2.2

2.2.2

Debt Recovery - Service Unit 
Issues

Social Services procedure 
notes need to change from 35 
days to 28 days as per AR

MR Agreed Adult Services 
Income & 
Finance Section

End of May 
2014 Not implemented - all 

Service area policies and 
processes are currently 
subject to review

P
age 47



Report of the Head of Finance & Delivery 
 

Audit Committee – 27 November 2014 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE – WORKPLAN  
 

 
Purpose: 
 

This report details the Audit Committee Workplan 
to May 2015. 
 

Report Author: Paul Beynon 
 

Finance Officer: Paul Beynon 
 

Legal Officer: Sharon Heys 
 

Access to Services 
Officer: 

Sherill Hopkins 

 
FOR INFORMATION 

 
1.  Introduction 

 
1.1 The Audit Committee’s Workplan to May 2015 is attached in Appendix 

1 for information 
 
2. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
2.1 There are no equality and engagement implications associated with this 

report. 
 
3. Financial Implications 

 
3.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
4. Legal Implications 
 
4.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report 
 
 
Background Papers:  None 

  
Appendix 1 – Audit Committee Workplan 2014/15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



Appendix 1 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE WORKPLAN 2014/15 
 

Date of Meeting Reports 

27th November 2014 Internal Audit Monitoring Report Q2 2014/15 
Recommendations Tracker Report 2013/14 
PwC Controls Report 2013/14 

15th January 2015 Audit Committee Review of Performance 2014/15 
PwC Annual Audit Letter 2013/14 

12th February 2015 Internal Audit Monitoring Report Q3 2014/15 
Wales Audit Office Programme Update 

12th March 2015 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2015/16 
Internal Audit Charter 2015/16 
Risk Management Annual Review 2014/15 

9th April 2015 PwC Annual Financial Audit Outline 2014/15 

 
 

Page 49


	Agenda
	2 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.
	3 Minutes.
	4a Report of Deficiencies of Internal Controls - City and County of Swansea.
	5 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2014/15 - Monitoring Report for the Period 1st July 2014 to 30th September 2014.
	05.1 - AUDIT CTTE  QTR 2 2014-15

	6 Fundamental Audits 2013/14 - Recommendations Tracker.
	06.1 - RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 2013-14
	06.2 - RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 2013-14
	06.3 - RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 2013-14
	06.4 - RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 2013-14

	7 Audit Committee Work Plan.

